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THE GALLERY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Trustees present their annual report together with the accounts and auditor's report of the charitable company
for the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees' report,
and a directors' report and strategic report under company law.

At the end of the 2023/24 academic year the Academy Trust operated 7 special academies for pupils aged
2-19 across Oxfordshire. It has a pupil capacity of 778 and has a rofl of 737 pupils in the schoaol census
January 2024,

Structure, governance and management

Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's
memoerandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.

The charitable company operales as The Gallery Trust.

The trustees of The Gallery Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law.
Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved, are included in
the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a
member,

Trustees' indemnities

There were no provisions required for third party Indemnity. In accordance with normal commercial practice, The
Gallery Trust purchased insurance fo protect Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or
omissions cccurring whilst on Trust business,

Method of recruitment and appeintment or election of Trustees

The Gallery Trust's Memcrandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Trust.
The Articles of Association require that there are at least three Members and up to ten Trustees. Details of The
Gallery Trust's Members and Trustees during the reporting period are provided on page 1. The Trust has five
members, in accordance with the Department for Education’s recommendation. The Trust currently has eight
Trustees. The appointment of Trustees is ratified by the Members.

All Trustees are required to confirm that they comply with appropriate statutory eligibility regulations for their role
and undertake an Enhanced Disclosure and Barring Check. Members, Trustees and Governors are required to sign
the Trust's Code of Conduct annually and to comply with the requiremenis of the Trust's Register of Business
Interests. '




THE GALLERY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

In order to support effective governance, an induction and training programme is in place for Trustess. External
training i1s obtained from the National Governance Associstion, Cxfordshire County Council, the Trust's legal
advisers Blake Morgan LLP, Confederation of School Trusts, and cother providers. Training and induction is
organised by the Board's Governance Manager and is individually tailored to meet the needs of new Trustees.
Copies of policies, accounts, minutes, guidance, sirategic plans and other documents relevant to the role are
provided., Governor Hub is used to disiribute information. As a result, Trustees have a knowledge and
understanding of the Trust's strategic vision and aims, day-to-day operation and management, their roles,
responsibilities and accountabiliies, and the duties of a Trustee and a Director. It is also important that Trustees
gain an awareness of the nature of students’ Special Educational Needs and Disabilites (SEND) and how the Trust,
as a Special Trust, differs from mainstream education providers. The Board of Trustees gains insights into the
operation of academies through pre-arranged visits to schools, including leaming walks, meetings with staff,
attendance at social svents, such as assemblies, and information obtained through attendance at Board and
committee meetings. Trustees also attended workshops led by a National Leader of Governance.

All Trustees were signed up to the National Governance Association learning website for governor training as well
as being directed to the Oxfordshire County Council cpportunities. Trustees receive appropriate safeguarding
training in accordance with statutory guidance,

Following an assessment of new Trustees' areas of experience and expertise, Trustees are invited to join
appropriate committees.

Organisational structure
The governance structure of the Trust consists of Members, Trustees, Chief Executive Officer, Trust central
executive team, and committees including Local Academy Boards and Rapid Improvement Boards.

Mrs M K Willett MBE is the Chief Executive Officer and Accounting Officer for the Trust,

Members have a constitutional role; Trustees have a strategic role. Trustees can delegate responsibilities to
committees in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation.

The Scheme of Delegation specifies the structure for strategic and operational decision-making, and
authorisation processes for governance, HR and finance. The Scheme of Delegation was reviewed and updated
in June 2024 and approved in the Board meeting in July 2024..




THE GALLERY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Members

Members have a constitutional role in the Trust. In order ta monitor the effectiveness of the Board of Trustees and
to ensure that the Board is upholding the vision and values of the Trust, the Members demonstrate competences in
governance, education, risk management and strategic leadership within its membership. The Members hold the
Board to account for the outcomes of the Trust. In order to ensure Members are fully cognisant with Trust business,
strategy and operation, Members receive minutes from Trustee mestings. Members meset with the Chief Executive
Officer and Chair of Trustees to receive Information regarding the performance of the Trust through regular
. communications and mestings with Trustess at the Annual General Mesating,

Specific duties of the Members:

« the subscribers to the Trust's Memorandum of Association (where they are founding members) may amend
the Articles of Association (the articles include a definition of the Trust's charitable objects and governance
structure) subject to any restrictions in the Articles or in the Trust's Funding Agreement or charity law. The
Funding Agreement is the contract between the Secretary of State for Education and the Trust that sets out
the terms on which the Trust is funded

« appoint and remove Trustees

« appoint the Trust's auditors and adopt the Trust's audited annual accounts (subject to the Companies Act
2008).

Trustees

The Trustees are responsible for: ensuring clarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction; holding senior leaders to
account for the educational performance of the organisation and its pupils; the appraisal and performance
management of staff; overseeing the financial performance of the organisation and making sure that funding is well
spent. The Trustees drive the management of the Trust and oversee the financial performance of the Trust. The
Trusteas comply with Government, Department for Education and Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)
requirements, company law, and charity law. The Trustees have legal responsibilities through the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Trust, under company law as Directors, and under charity law as Trustees,

Specific Duties of the Board of Trustees:

. ensures the quality of the Trust's educational offer, overseeing standards and outcomes

monitors and evaluates the progress of strategic objectives within schools' Raising Achievement Plans and
the Trust's Strategic Plans

oversees key performance data

recommends changes lo the Articles of Association and Funding Agreement to the Members

ensures that the Trust operates within the Funding Agreement

approves changes to the Scheme of Delegation

confirms the appointment of Chairs of Local Academy Boards

manages the Trust's finances and property including:

compliance with The Academy Trust Handbook. The Handbook sets out the financial management,
control and reporting requirements that apply to all Academy Trusts. |t describes a financial framework
for trusts that focuses on principles rather than detailed guidance and reflects their accountability to
Parliament and to the public.

approval of the Trust's annua! 3-year revenue and capital budget on the recommendation of the
Finance and Personnal Committee ’

. recommendations to the Members regarding the annual reports and acccunts for filing at Companies
House

overseas risk management

participates in the recruitment of senior staff

receives and considers reports from committees

appraises the Chief Executive Officer

.+ 2 ¥ s+ e
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THE GALLERY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer is the Accounting Officer, and has overall responsibility for the Trust's finances and
financial effectiveness. The Chief Exscutive Officer is an ex-officio Trustee.

The Chief Executive Officer is held accountable by Trustees and Members for the performance of the Trust, and the
outcomes of schools in the Trust. The Chief Executive Officer leads strategic school improvement, working in
collaboration with senior leaders, The Chief Executive Officer maintains an overview of the national education
agenda and supports school leaders to focus on outcomes for pupils in their individual schools.

Committees

The Trust has several committees with membership comprising of Trustees and Local Academy Board or Rapid
Improvement Board members, which are attended in an advisory capacity by senior staff.

Committees provide authoritative and knowledgeable guidance, reports and data to the Board of Trustees. The
following committees report to the Board:;
« each school is supported by a Local Academy Board, which undertakes responsihilities delegated by the
Board
+ Trust Finance and Personne! Commitiee
« Trust Audit and Risk Committee
« Trust Schools and Education Commitiee

Other committees are convened as and when necessary., These include Pay, CEO Appraisal, Head Teacher
Appraisal, Staff Discipline, Pupil Discipline and Discipline Appeal Committees,

Arrangements for sefting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Arrangements for sefting the pay and remuneration of the Trust's key management personnel are reviewed in
accordance with ESFA guidance by the Pay Committee, reporting o the Finance and Personnel Committee, and
approved by the Trustees. The Trust follows the pay arrangements for maintained schools in England and Wales for
teachers and for support staff. The Trust's teachers’ pay policy is based on the national agreed pay scale as
outlined in the School Teachers Pay and Conditions Document (STPCD). The Trust adheres to Local Government
terms and conditions for support staff (Green Book) and follows the Local Government pay spine.

The only Trustee to receive remuneration is the Chief Executive Officer using the arrangement detailed above. This
remuneration is received solely in respect of services provided in undertaking the role of Chief Executive Officer
under a contract of employment, and not as a Trustee,




THE GALLERY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Trade unicn facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during
the relevant period

Fuli-time equivalent employee number

Percentage of time spent on facility time
Percentage of time

0%

1%-50%

51%-99%

100%

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time

Total pay bill

Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of
total paid facility time hours

0.40

Number of employees

1

12,760,802




THE GALLERY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Engagement with employvees
The Gallery Trust recognises that its strongest asset is its workforce. A skilled, qualified, diverse and engaged
warkforce is critical to achieve the Trust's objectives,

The Trust strives to create an open culture throughout all of its establishments which is in accordance with its
vision and values. Respect and trust are core values In the Trust and thase principles underpin interactions
between staff at all levels of the organisation, The acknowledgement of the value of engaging staff through
collaboration and communication is embedded. The mechanisms for keeping staff informed on matters of
concern include regular meetings of whole staff groups (e.g. dally and weekly staff meetings), within cohorts
(e.9. specialist groups within the staif body, curriculum working groups and forums), with peers (e.g. meetings
between Head Teachers and senior leaders), sharing information on operational initiatives and strategic
objectives {e.g. Raising Achievement Plans), and communications between line managers and staff, including
appraisal and wellbeing mestings.

Staff across the establishments meet regularly to share information, to work tagether on commaon themes, and to
enhable staff to become involved in wider Trust activities beyond their own schools.

The Trust executive team meet frequently with senior leaders in schools during face-to-face visits and in online
meetings, and the CEO has regular scheduled meetings with Head Teachers. All Head Teachsers meet with the
Trust's executive team on a regular basis. The Trust holds two conferences a year that are attended by trustees,
Head Teachers and senior leaders from the schools and the Trust,

The Trust has positive relationships with trade unions, and all trade unions representing staff in the Trust are
recognised.

The Trust executive team believes that individual interaction with staff is an important way to develop
understanding of the circumstances in which staff work. The Trust's executive team works with establishments in
the Trust to ensure that they remain in touch with strategic issuss and operational challenges, to meet staff, and
to celebrate successes and achievements,

The Trust will continue to expand its existing network of communications to enhance a listening culture and to
foster relationships and partnership working at all levels of the organisation.

The Trust invests in training, {alent management and Continued Professional Development (CPD), recognising
that the personal and professional development of employees and succession planning is a key factor in the
organisation's strategy for success.

The Trust Sfrategic Plan introduced a people strategy to develop and implement processes to enable the Trust
to recruit, train, develop, retain and reward our staff. All staff benefit from the Welltbeing Charier, which aims to
improve the health and wellbeing of cur workforce.

The Tiust strives to be a responsible employer in its approach to the pay and benefits for employees, and
observes the School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions Document for teachers and the Green Book for support staff.
Employees are strongly encouraged to participate in the Trusl's pensions schemes.

The health, safety, support and wellbeing of employees is a consideration in deciding strategies .and
approaches. The Trust has comprehensive health and safely policies, induction, continual professional
development, and training programmes. The Trust has an aclive redeployment palicy, which provides the
opportunity for staff to move across establishments on a permanent, temporary or seconded basis.

The Trust Is committed {o employing people with disabilities and acknowledges the benefits of employing
disabied staff as this increases the number of applicants available: creates a diverse workforce; and brings
additional skills and experience. The Trust also tecognises that the benefits of retaining an experienced and
skilled employee who acquires an impairment during employment usually far exceeds any possible
disadvantage of retention. Employing people with disabilities is embedded within the Trust's vision and values
and this ethos is applied throughout the organisation. The Trust's Safer Recruitment policy ensures high
standards of Safeguarding and removes the risk of discrimination in the recruitment process.




THE GALLERY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Engagement with suppliers, cusiomers and others in a business relationship with the Academy Trust

{tis vital for the Trust to operate effective business relationships with a wide range of suppliers and contractors
to ensure the needs of establishments are met efficiently and in accordance with value for money principles and
procurement regulations, All supplier related activity is managed in line with statutory and regulatory guidance.
including the Academy Trust Handbook, the Funding Agreement, and internal policies. e.g. Internal Financial
Regulations and Procurement and Tendering Policy. All orders are placed through the Trust's financial software
with existing suppliers, and authorisation is obtained when new suppliers are added with bank details
undergoing rigorous checks. Contracts are managed closely by staff to ensure value for money and effective
services, and the Trust requires regular reporting from contractors to monitor and evaluate performance. Service
Level Agreements are required to be completed before contracts are approved.

An important part of the Trust's culture is the promotion of high legal, ethical, environment and employee
relations standards within the organisation and amongst suppliers and contractors.

All procurement activities follow statutory guidance, and tenders for large contracts include a due diligence
process, scrutiny of data security, corporate responsibilily, value for money, standards. and any potential
reputational issues.

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

The Gallery Trust is a Multi Academy Trust. The Trust is not currently linked to other organisations and has no
subsidiary companies. Details of related parties and transactions during the year are set out in notes 11 and 24.

Objectives and activities

Mission and Vigion

The Gallery Trust is a growing mulii-academy trust dedicated towards its mission to be a community of excellence
that drives innovation, ambition, and aspirations, and celebrates the diversity of our learners.

The Trust provides outstanding education and support for its children and young people with special needs and
disabilities in a diverse landscape, enabled through:

* Commitment to special education — striving to provide the best specialist learning experience for all students
« Opportunities for all to learn — ensuring that students and staff have access to learning pathways which enhance
their lives

« Genuine respect and value — creating relationships which promote trust, confidence and respect within
environmeants which are safe and secure

With a relentless pursuit towards its vision of;

+ developing our students as active citizens with a strong moral compass, and an understanding of the impact they
can hava on their community and society

« providing a broad and ambitious vision of what a good life is, cne which places value on contribution, difference,
common values, and the process of learning

+ providing a broad range of success measures ensuring that every child and young person has opportunity to
celebrate what success looks like for them
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic objectives and aims
The main objectives of The Gallery Trust are:

= to continue to build a community of special schools which meets the needs of all cohorts of SEND pupils in
Oxfordshire, providing outstanding education and support for pupils within the establishments

« to consolidate the measured, sustainable and considered expansion of the Trust through:
-welcoming established special schools into the Trust, including those which require sponsorship
~opening new free special schools _
-considering other opportunities which may arise in the county which promete positive outcomes for pupils
with SEND

« to ensure that the Trust's schoal environments provide all learners with access to specialist resources and
learning spaces which promote positive engagement in leaming

The Trust has four strategic aims io achieve its vision to provide:

1. Places where innovation drives learning: Our schools have a clear purpose: they educate the whole child
and prepare them for adulthood. Everything we do, from our curricium offer to our pastoral care, is
meaningful and driven by tha needs of our learners.

2. Flaces where relationships drive engagement and achievement: Our schools are built around exceptional
relationships. We provide excellent experiences and opportunities for students and staff, and specialist
working envircnments and resources.

3. Places which provide exceptional knowledge and support: Our schools are supported by a skilled and
experianced central téam which delivers high-quality school improvement and business support services.
4, Placas which inspire and influence: Our schools are committed to collaborating with local and national

partners and communities to ensure that children and young people with SEND receive the education and
opportunities they deserve.

Stratedic Priorities

Strategic Priority 1 - Places where innovation drives learning

1.1 Attendance
For aftendance in all of our schools to return to pre-pandemic levels and be at least in line with national averages for
special schools

« attendance in all schools will be at least in line with national averages

« persistent (PA) and severe absence (SA) will be below national averages

» schools will have robust tracking and action planning In place which has a positive impact on students
attendance levels :

1.2 Evidenced based self-evaluation and accurate school improvement plans
Ensure that all schools have robust evidence-based School Self Evalualion Forms and have Raising Achievement
Plans {(RAPs) in placa to support effective school improvement

» RAPs identify the correct priorities following forensic triangulation of evidence and data available — as a
result, student outcomes are judged as good or better
« improvement plans are evidence-based research from across the Trust and other verified sources

1.3 Curriculum
Ensure that each school's curriculum is powerful and relevant and is contexiualised to the SEND needs of students
and thelir priorities for development to include a tiered approach to provision

o all schools have a curriculum model which is developing to good or better and effectively promotes the
knowledge and skills that students will gain through each stage of the curricilum

« the curriculum model will be ambitious for all studenls and will make bespoke provision for the students
who require it

« The Gallery Trust networks will develop a body of curriculum experts to develop expertise in all key
subjects across Trust schools

-10 -
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TRUSTEES' REPORT {(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.4 Monitoring and Moderation
Robust monitoring and moderation procedures are consistently implemented across all schools ensuring every
student is supported to achieve their individual outcomes

+ he Gallery Trust School Improvement strategy is embedded and the support provided by the Schaol
Improvement Team is effective

« strong evidence is available to support the impact of the Trust's audit and review, planning and preparation,
implemantation and review and evaluation cycle of school improvement

+ School Heaith Dashboards are effective in providing baselining information to stakeholders.

1.5 Teaching and learning
Where the guality of teaching is less than good, systems of support, training and quality assurance are put in place
quickly to support improvement

« strong teaching and learning are consistently evident across all schools.
+ Leadership of Learning toolkits support leaders in auditing and judging practice and suppotts emerging and
developing practice to become good

Strategic Priority 2 - Places where relationships drive engagement and achievement

2.1 Digital
Develop a clear vision and digital strategy to provide an improved infrastructure which promotes all children and
young people as digital learners

Trust schools to complete the digital strategy audit to inform Trust IT stafus

Trust infrastructure is audited to inform next steps for a consistent, secure and effective approach

Trust ta move to cloud-based data storage enabling security and reducing vulnerability

assess and evaluate current shared platforms and operational systems to inform cost efficient and effective
future working

L] L L »

2.2 Collahoration
Collaberative working becomes an integral part of each school's provision to improve student outcomes and
maximise the capacity for school improvement across the Trust

«» hetworks are In place and promote strong relaticnships built on equity and creativity across the Trust
schools’ leadership

+ peer Heads challenge and review processes embedded and seen as highly effective in collaborative
learning to support school improvement and outcomes

- outward looking relationships are built to support school improvement and MAT functionality

« universal Continual Professional Development offer across Trust schools is embedded with research for
effectiveness and collaborative working

2.3 Data collection and reporting
Create robust data collection and reporting arrangements which provide Trust leaders and Governance
stakeholders with accurate information which drives schoof improvement

« systematic and consistent data collection and reporting and built in to school and Trust calanders and
routines

o fimely executive meeting and Trustee meetings idenlify trends, successes and risks

- compliance is monitored through effective analysis of data and reporting. Trustees and LAB members have
a strong understanding of strengths and risks across the Trust and in individual schools

-1 -
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

2.4 People Strategy

Infroduce a Trust People Strategy, developihg and implementing processes to enable us to recruit, train, develop,
retain, and reward our staff and ensure all staff benefit from our Wellbeing Charter, which aims to improve the health
and wellbeing of our workforce

- consistent approaches for flexible working practices ares in place with clearly defined and creative options,
supported by people, planning analytics

» Trust Training programmes are embedded which enhances [eadership skills and development with
particular focus on middle [eaders and senior leaders’ development

- defined support staff career routes and toolkits to offer professional development and succession planning

« a Wellbeing Charter is embedded in every school with a network of wellbeing champions supporting the
*Have a Goad Day at Work” initiative.

Strategic Priority 3 - Places which provide exceptional knowledge and support

3.1 Effective Trust School Improvement Systems

Introduce a robust school improvement system which makes the best use of strengths to support capacity and
improvement in others

« the tiered approach to school improvement ensures Trust resource is well altocated and has an impact on
improving provision across the Trust

» hew Head Teachers receive comprehensive induction and support to enable them to rapidly establish
themselves as strong and effective leaders

+ Trustees have an evidence base with which to determine the effectiveness cof school improvement support

+ all members of the Team Around the Schoel understand and have ownership of their role in relation to
school improvement

3.2 Excellence in Leadership
Develop processes that will enable existing leadsrs to manage sffectively and will enable the Trust to identify, train
and develop future leaders

» Trust Leadarship development courses offer excelient leadership skills, knowledge and behaviour training
pragrammes for senior, middle and aspiring Heads

» new to Headship Programme offers coaching programme for reflective practice, skill and knowledge
development for years 1 and 2 of early headship as part of the appraisal programme

3.3 Business Systems and Processes
Undertake a forensic review of business systems across the Trust and in all Trust schools to identify best practice
and improvement opporiunities, and ensure quality and consistency of delivery

« central staff consolidate their knowledge and understanding of compliance requirements and use relevant
external and internal resources. Appraisal setting includes one objective relating to compliance

« each Board Committee is assigned a link direclor who collaborates with the Governance Consultant and
Committee Chairs to support compliance with core documents

+ A phased review of efficiency and effectiveness of central business processes commences and
improvement opportunities identified

« preparation of a 3 year business plan

« reporting of financial data and information is evaluated and improvement opportunities identified

 prioritised targeted and phased plan of procurement exercises has commenced

3.4 Estates
Develop a strategy which takes a shori, medium and long-term view of the Trust estate, identifying standards and
aspirations for development that align with the vision for educational delivery in schools

« preparation of sirategic estate planning documents is underway, including educational vision, estate vision,
estate strategy and asset management plan

-12 -
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic Priority 4 - Places which inspire and influence

4,1 Improving outcomes for children and young people with SEND outside of the Trust
Respend to local needs by infroducing a high-quality Outreach and In-reach ptovision which is commissioned by the
Local Authority and/or other trust and school partnerships

+» outreach provision supports malnstream primary schools in North and Central Oxfordshire — bought-in-
sarvice

« In-reach offer is utilised to support mainstream schoois with inclusion

+ Trust provides a suite of training opportunities for professional development

« OCC LA commission the Trust to provide In-reach and Outreach — Commissioned Services

4.2 Training and Development
Actively seek opportunities to join local and national initiatives and steering groups, and provide SEND training
programmes for local and national providers

« Trust representatives on OCC SEN steering groups support and influence White Paper recommendations

- Trust has developed a working relationship as a training provider and course author for joint working with
Swindon and Barkshire Teaching School

« Trust develops partnership working with Ambition Institute and other Educational Training Providers
including local Universities providing teacher training

43 Trust Growth
Ensure the smooth integration and induction of any new schools into the Trust, Explore further opportunities for Free
AP and Special Schools

« the risks, challenges and opportunities associated with schools aspiring to join the Trust are recognised
through thorough due diligence
« praoject management continues on Faringdon Free Special School

4.4 Strategic Governance

Develop high-guality induction processes that help to aftract, retain, and maximise skills of Trustees and Governors,
ensuring new Trustees and Governors understand the Gallery Trust way and can fulfil their role with the best
interest of the Trust and its stakeholders at heart

« Trustees and Governors have secure knowledge and understanding of The Trust; they are confident in their
ability to make valued contributions to the Board

« Trustee and Governor recruitment strategy supports the continuing effectiveness of the Board and takes
account of the evolving requirements of MAT governance and Trust growth

-13 -
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TRUSTEES' REPORT {(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report

Achievements and performance

The Trust is pleased to record a number of key achievements and successes in the year under review. These
included:

+ realising the mission and vision of the trust through the successful implementation of phase 1 of the five-
year Strategic Plan,

- building upon the collaborative and consultative relationship with a wide range of key stakeholders,
including the Department for Education (DfE), Education Skills Funding Agency {ESFA), Regional Directors
and Oxfordshire County Councill,

s strengthening the Trust’s position as a strategic lead in the provision of cutstanding education and support
for students with SEND throughout Oxfordshire, enhancing the trust’s ability to influence SEND policy and
strategy.

« continuing the expansion of the Trust through:

- successful opening of Bloxham Grove Academy: apened January 2024 with 55 students, fully staffed, and

a strong focus on a values-led innovative curriculum, with 100% staff taking pride in their work (staff survey)

- expansion of Mabel Prichard School: public consultation undertaken and successful Significant Change
Appilication submitted to the DfE to expand the number of pupil places by 30 at the primary school site at
Mabel Prichard School, with full support from OCC to increase pupif numbers in 2025/26.

- new Faringdon Free Special School: pre-opening preparation and planning for the new Faringdon Free
School, a 100-place Free Special Schocl due to apen in 2026/27.

- collaboration and Outreach: providing bespoke support for schools, enhancing inclusion strategies for
students with SEND. Provision of in-reach (avening Inclusion clinics) and outreach specialist support fo
43 mainstream schools in Oxfordshire

- successful bid to Oxfordshire County Council for a 3-year contract to provide Short Breaks provision at a
number of Trust schools

+ embedding the Trust's School Improvement Strategy including school improvement support and quality
assurance activity across the trust

« securing rapid stabilisation and sustainable improvement at Orion Academy {Ofsted ‘Good’ for personal
development, 2024}, delivering transformational school improvemant journey at Northern House Academy
(Ofsted Outstanding, 2024), whilst maintaining the exceptional standards at Iffley (Ofsted Outstanding
2024).

» secured a fully funded two-year partnership with the Bucks, Berks and Oxfordshire Maths Hub focus on
developing mathematics leadership and curriculum design to maximise on learner outcomes, due to start
2024125,

+ holistic education focus: All schools emphasise personal development and tailor the curriculum to meet the
unique personal needs of learners, achieving at least "Good" provision in personal development,

+ building the capagity of the schools’ Senior Leadership Teams and strengthened accountability and impact
of leaders

» successful integration of the new Head Teachers at Bloxham Grove Academy, Springfield School, Iffley
Academy and Orion Academy into the Trust.

« successful expansion of the senior Central Team io support capacity for growth included the following new
posts:

- Director of Education {2 posts)
~ Trust Lead: Inclusion: Access to Leaming
- Trust Lead: Outreach, Training and Development
- Lead Practiioner for Outreach, Training and Development

« Team Around the School Meetings and School Health Dashboards have been effectively introduced and
developed this year.

+ 'Recruit, train, develop and retain’ staff strategy has had clear impact in supporting the delivery of key areas
of the sirategic plan

« providing professional coaching for Head Teachers and central leaders to paositively support personal
growth and wellbeing.
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Suite of leadership and management professional development opportunities:

Leadership Behaviours Training: 100 % of all senior leaders have participated in the 2-day residential
Leadership Behaviours programme,

Headship Programme: 100% of Head Teachers have engaged in Trust training using research on Leading
Organisations and Leading People.

Institute of Leadership and Management endorsed ‘Leading Teaching and Learning through a Coaching
Model' has been piloted with ten leaders at Northern House Academy. The impact of the Joint
Development Practice model for CPD has been endotsed by Oftsed in the school's recent inspection,
building professional capita in all schools, providing an environment of opportunity for all staff to advance
their career, staff actively engaged in a range of professional learing oppertunities from foundation degree
in Therapeutic Work with Children, fully funded Ambition National Professional Qualifications (NPQs), and
masters degrees,

Introduction of a Wellbeing Charter focused on improving the health and wellbeing of the Trust's workforce
Commissioned to plan, prepare and deliver the initial Teacher Training {ITT) Primary SEND, NPQ Senior
Leadership Devalopment and NPQ SECC courses for national/regional cohorts in 2024/25,

developing the trust’s digital strategy to enhance pupil learning experience, reduce teacher workload and
share good practice

strong systems for safeguarding, student attendance, health and safety and HR in schools, and a culture of
compliance monitoring and reporting

compliance evidence in place and robust for statutory and reguiatory Health and Safety audits and
inspections, with 100% of schools using a Trust-wide cloud-based asset management and Health and
Safety compliance system

successful delivery of the new-build free school at Bloxham Grove Academy, alongside the DfE's Condition
Improvement Fund projects at Bardwell School and Mabel Pritchard School,

Condition surveys were completed across schools in the 2024 summer break, the reports and data will
provide the detail for the Trust's Asset Management Plan.

QOutreach Provision

OCC commission outreach to the special schools in Oxfordshire to support mainstream schools, the trust was
successfuly commissioned by OCC fto deliver some of this work, The fotal commissioned work was
£244,852.50. The contributions far outreach have come in under the following headings:

+ Key Worker development
» Leadership Development including SENCO support
+ Clinics

During 2023-24, the trust's outreach programme has intensively supportad 42 mainstream student referrals, with 13
trust staff invelved in its delivery. The table below provides the breakdown of mainstream student referrals

throughotit the year:

Dates [Mainstream Referrals
Autumn 23 18 referrals

Spring 24 14 referrals

Summer 24 10 referrals

Total 2023-2024 42 referrals
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Key performance_indicators

Student Achievements:

School:

Iffley Academy:

Moderate Cognition and Leaming needs (MLD) and associated
Communication and Interaction needs (ASD) and Social,
Emotional and Mental Health needs (SEMH}

5-18yrs
Qualification Type; Entry Level
Mathematics Year11 Level 1 -2
EL3 -4
EL2-4
EL1—1
[Mathematics Year13 EL3—9
EL2 -6
EL1-—3
English Year11 Level 1 —1
EL3—4
EL2-5
EL1-1
English Year13 EL3-1
EL 2~ 11
EL1--6
Qualification Type: IT Users Entry Level Award:
Level 3 - 2
lLevel 2 —-15
Level 12
Qualification Type: NOCN Awards
Construction 1
Household (4
Accessing the Community 4
Employability 4
Rights and Responsibilities 4
Leisure 4
Qualification Type: Diploma Level 1
\ocational 6
Digital Media 5
Qualification Type: ASDAN
Short Course Certification 14
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School: Northern House Academy:

Social, Emotional and Mental MHealth needs (SEMH) and
Communication and Interaction needs {ASD) 5-11yrs
Qualification Type: Key Stage 2 SATs

Reading Meet Age Related Expectation (100+ scaled score) = 25%
Below Age Related Expectation;

(20-99 Scaled Score) = 50%

(80-89 Scaled Scare) = 12.5%

No score = 12.5%

Mathematics [Meet Age Related Expectation (100+ scaled score) = 0%
Below Age Related Expectation:

(20-99 Scaled Score) = 37.5%

(80-89 Scaled Score) = 37.5%

No score = 256%

KS 1 Phonics Screening

H0% Met expected standard (National EHCF benchmark 20%)

School; Orion Academy:
Social, Emoficnal and Mental Health needs (SEMH) and
Communication and Interaction needs {ASD) 10-18

Qualification Type: GCSE
Art Grade 5 -1
Grade 6 - 2
Grade 7 — 1
Qualification Type: Functional Skllis Level 1
English 5
IMathematics 6
Entry Level
English 0
BTEC
Home Cooking 3

\ocational Skills Introduction Cert L1 6
Vocational Skills Infroduction Award L1 [1
Drumming Award Grade 7 1

School: Springfield School:
Severe Learning Difficulties (SLD), Prefound and Multiple
l.earning Difficulties (PMLD) 2-19yrs
Qualification Type: AQA Accredited Units:

Outcomes: Pre-entry and Eniry [evel

Duke of Edinburgh Award: Bronze and Silver
OCC Independent Travel Training
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Leavers Destinations:

Leavers Destinations [Number
Year 11 (39 students) Active Learning - College 17
Abingdon and Witney College 8
Henley College

EMBS

Frank Wise

Orion Sixth Form

[TRAX

SOFEA

HERCS

NEET

Year 12 (1 student) Abingdon and Witney College
Year 13 (23 students) Abingdon and Witney College
Active Learning - College
Henley College

St Johns College

Year 14 Active Learning - College

I gury pucy Jurey F7oY JECY BION pECY gy gy Fou N FOVY Y Y

Public benefit

The Trustees of The Gallery Trust confirm that they have complied with their duty in Section 17(5) of the 2011
Charlties Act to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit published by the Charity Commission in
exercising their powers or duties.

The primary focus of the activities of The Gallery Trust is to advance the education of students with Education,
Health and Care Plans througheout Oxfordshire. The Trust has links with all Oxfordshire special schools, and the
Chief Executive Officer, and Head Teachers of schools in the Trust are members of the Oxfordshire Special Schools
Head Teachers Association.

Underlying this focus is the aim of contributing to the public good by enhancing the lives of children who have
special educational needs and disabilities, and providing support to their families. Studenis' social, moral, spiritual
and cultural education underpins curriculum frameworks. Students have regular opportunities to engage on a local,
national and global level to think about wider issues e.g. poverty, disability, discrimination, equality and the
environment. This maximises students’ potential to develop into independent and cenfident citizens who respect the
beliefs of others, and who can make a positive and meaningful contribution to their local community and society as
a whole.

The Trust emphasises awareness of multi-cultural values, knowledge, understanding and acceptance of diversity
and a commitment to equal opportunities, throughout all its activities. The Trust's Safer Recruitment policy ensures
that applications for employment from people with disabilities are welcomed and processed with positive
consideration when essential criteria are met,

Goihg concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reascnable expectation that the Academy Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, For this reason, the Board of
Trustees continues to adopt the going concemn basis in preparing the accounts. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the statement of accounting policies.
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Protecting the success of the Academy Trust
The Board of Trustees are fully aware of their responsibilities in the promotion of the success of the Trust,

The Board meets at least six times a year and additional extraordinary general meetings are called when required.
During the period under review, the Board met seven times,

Board meetings are organised by a professional and qualified Governance Professional and are structured in
accordance with guidance and the Articles of Association, Documents are circulated with agendas in advance of
meetings. Meetings are attended by members of the executive team in an advisory capacity to ensure Trustees are
provided with information to assist their decision making. Ali issues are discussed In depth at meetings fo ensure.
that shart-term and long-term conseguences of decisions are fully explored before decisions are ratified.

Board decisions are taken against the backdrop of the Trust's vision, ethos and values, the charitable objectives,
and in the best interests of staff, pupils, familles and communitiss. The need to observe statutory and regulatory
compliance is also at the forefront of decision making.

Trustees are appointed to the Board by the Members following a process of assessment and due diligence and are
required to demonstrate appropriate skills. All Trustees must comply with the Trust's code of conduct which is
completed annually.

Trustees are aware of their responsibilities in accordance with the Trust's status as a limited company and an
exempt charity. It is critical for the organisation to maintain its reputalion for high standards in achieving its
charitable objectives and in business conduct. The Trust's ambition to maintain its current status as a high
perfarming, ethical and reputable organisation informs decision making.

The Beard is responsible for setting, monitoring, and upholding the Trust's strong identity, culture, values and
reputation, and these qualities are promoted in all activities, A thorough process of induction and continuous
professional development ensures that Trustees are familiar with the need to exercise independent judgement,
reasonable care, skill, and diligence: to avoid conflicts of interests and not accept benefits from third parties. The
Trustees are required to work within The Seven Principles of Public life (also known as Nolan's Principles):

Selflessness
Integrity
Objectivity
Accountability
Openness
Honesty
Leadership

Noohk o

The Trust works to attract, develop, and retain qualified, experienced and skilled staff, and recognises the crucial
role of staff in achieving successful outcomes. Please refer to page 8 for further information in the section:
"Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)",

The Trust recognises the need for effective relationships with suppliers and that these are important in the
success of the organisation, Pleage refer to page 9 for further information in the section: "Engagement with
suppliers, customers and cthers in & business relationship with the Trust",
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The Trust has an Important duty to benefit the community and the environment. Please see page 25 which
provides examples of the praclical steps that the Trust is taking fo reduce energy usage to benefit the
environment. Pupils are taught about environmental issues, including climate change, the depletion of natural
resources, the threats to the natural worid, and how they can take positive action within their own communities.
The Trust's new builds have high standards of energy efficiency and promote sustainability and recycling.

In accordance with the Trust's vision and values, a core role of the Trust is to have a positive impact on its
cemmunity of pupils, staff, parents, and families as well as the wider community. The Trust regards itself as a
power of good, an organisation which is dedicated to improving outcomes for all stakeholders. The values of the
Trust are nof a theoratical statement: they underpin strategic abjectives and practical decislons at every level. At
an operational level, thig Is reflected in the importance attached to relationships formed with parents and carers,
and ihe acknowladgement from all colleagues that the best results for pupils are achieved when decisions and
actions are made in partnership with parents/carers and other professionals.

Financial review

The majority of the Trusi's income is obtained from the ESFA, the use of which is restricted to educational
purposes. Further income is obtained from Oxfordshire County Council in the form of high needs top up funding.
Both sources of funding are provided on the basis of commissioned places. The funding received from the ESFA
during the period ended 31 August 2024 is shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Excluding the fixed asset fund {representing the net book value of fixed assets and unspeni capital grants) of
£70,896,820 (2023: £565,192,455) and the pension deficit fund of £619,000 (2023; £1,473,000), reserves balances
amount to £1,670,637 {2023: £715,662). This comprises rastricted reserves funds of £954,975 (2023: £Nil) and
unrestricted general funds of £715,662 (2023: £715,662),
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Reserves policy
The reserves policy:
« confirms the Trust's strategy on the management of reserves, regarded by Trustees as a key factor in the
financial sustainability and security of the Trust.
« assists in strategic planning by considering how projects, activities and Trust expansion will be funded.
informs the budget planning process.
- informs risk management by identifying any known uncertainties in future funding and income streams.,
delivers security of cash flow and short-term protection against potential changes in funding.
« +onfirms the approach taken to the reserves held by joining schools.

When considering an appropriate level of reserves, the Trustees consider:

+ unforeseen emergency or other unexpected need for funds, e.g. emergency repairs and maintenance
within the Trust's estates.

« unforeseen day-to-day operational costs, e.g. employing temporary staff to cover long-term sick absence. a
fall in a source of income, e.g. pupil franspart.

« funding cuts.

» planned commitments, or designaticns, that cannot be met by future income alone, e.g. contributions
towards capital projects which are not funded by Government sourcas,

« the need to fund potential cashflow, e.g. funds may need to be spent before a funding grant is received.
unbudgeted, unfunded increased staffing costs which may be imposed by external agencies, including pay
rises, increases in pension contributions,

» costs involved in the planned expansion of the Trusi in accordance with its agreed vision, e.g. building an
appropriate infrastruciure and central staff capacity which can provide meaningful and effective support to
schools and partners. There are costs associated with developing the Trust in line with current plans that
require expenditure preceding generated income,

« staff costs incurred 'at risk', e.g. pre-conversion due diligence work, funding bids and project applications,
free schoof applications.

« enabling the support of schoals with initiatives and projects to drive improvement in line with the Trust's
vision and ethos.

= the level of additional resources which may be required when supporting schools previously categorised by
Ofsted as Inadequate.

« the possihility that the Trust may be required to support additional expenditure incurred in the completion of
new builds, e.g. landscaping.

During the financial year The Trustees identify:
- when reserves are drawn on, so that they understand the reasons and can consider what correcitive action,
if any, needs to be taken.
» when reserve levels rise significantly so that they understand the reasons and ¢an consider the corrective
action, if any, that needs to be taken.
= where the reserves level is below target and consider whether it is due to short-term circumstance or
lenger-term reasons which might require a broader review of finances and reserves.

In-year reports provided to the Finance and Personnel Committee:
« compare the amaunt of reserves held with the target amount or target range set for reservas. explain any
shortfall or excess in reserves against target set.
- explain any action being taken or planned to bring reserves into line with target.
« consider the use of reserves to support growth or invest in projects to generate income eg outreach
services.

On 31 August 2024 the Academy Trust held the following Reserves (excluding Fixed Asset Fund (which represents
Net Book Value of Fixed Assets) and Pension Deficit):

Unresftricted General Funds 715,662
Restricted Capital Funds 617,649
Restricted General Funds 054 975
Reserves at 31 August 2024 2,288 286
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The current reserves policy is for revenue reserves to be at least 5% of the annual income of the Trust. The
amount of revenue reserves held by the Trust as at 31 August 2024 is £1,670,637 which represents 4.2% of
annual income. The budget forecast has been agreed by the Trustess will bring the reserves level back to 5% in
the next financial year,

The LGPS Pension Deficit is likely to be met in the longer term from any combination of increased employer
contrioutions, increased government funding or change to scheme benefits, The restricted funds will be spent in
accordance with the terms of the particular funds,

Investment policy
A prudent level of resources to deal with unforeseen contingencies is maintained and the Trust takes a cautious
approach to investments,

The Trust's funds are currently in an instant access account with a UK High Street Bank. The Trust reviews interest
rates and considers investment opportunities on an annuat basis. The Trust's policy at this time is to only invest
funds in risk free and immediately accessible deposit accounts.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Senior leaders and Trustees undertake constant assessment of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Trust through the activities of the Finance and Personnel Committee and the Audit and Risk Committee which
are reported to the Board.

The Trust has a risk register to record and monitor risk which is reviewed on a regular basis by the Audit and
Risk Committee. The register provides an integrated approach to risk and compliance, featuring prepopulated
and tailored risk identification, and monitoring of controls designed to mitigate and monitor risk. Risk categories
captured in the register include: education, safeguarding, finance, estates, health and safety, human resources,
ICT data and cyber, external/strategic and project risks.

Principal risks facing the Trust are predominantly linked to the academies in the Trust and are common to the
education sector,

Risks include:

» Financial: Changes in government grants, rates of funding, including rates of High Needs top up funding,
and central government funding rates present challenges to school budgets. Other financial risks include
reduction in income streams; unforeseen increase in costs or capital repairs; unbudgeted, unfunded pay
rises for teaching and support staff, including increased NI and pension costs, which are enforced by
external agencies: inflationary pressures, as special school pupil place funding has not kept up with
inflation for several years: difficulties in securing funding required to meet the special and specific needs of
individual pupils.

« Energy: Increasing energy costs and volatile global markets have had a significant impact. The Trust has
taken steps to procure energy on an aggregated basis to secure best value for money and taken steps to
reduce energy consumption through capital investment in heating systems, solar PV and LED lighting.

« Building condition: The Trust has been required to bid tor school maintenance funding for specific projects
through the Department for Education's Condition Improvement Fund (CiF), CIF bids are compelitive and
cannot assume that submitted bids will be successful. Whilst the Trust has a good track record of
submitting successful bids, this approach does not guarantee that the necessary funding to keep the
estates in good order will be received. The Trust became eligible for School Condition Allocation funding
from April 2024, these resources will enable the Trust to plan and manage the estate in a more strategic,
systematic and forward planhing way.

- Staffing: The principal tisks are associated with succession planning and Senior Leader, teachsr and
support stafl recruitment and retention. As the Trust grows, additional opportunities will be provided to staff
to develop their expertise in different schools and with varying SEND cohorts which will have a positive
impact on retention. Some recruitment issues are posed by the fact that Oxfordshire is an area with above
average housing costs.
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+ Central Team Capacity: The capacity of the central team to meet the demands of supporting new school
leaders, Trust consolidation and growth while keeping the costs of the teams as low as possible in order to
maximise funding for pupils in schools,

+ Growth and expansion activities: The Trust undertakes thorough due diligence with schools that wish to join
and in alt growth and expansion aclivities. However, unforaseen risks may be presented by joining schools.

= Sponsored Schools: The Trustees acknowledge that sponsor schoels can bring challenges across all areas
of operation. However, the Trust's visicn is to support special schools in Oxfordshire, and this includes
schools that are categorised as Inadequate. The significant challenges of supporting such schools bring
additional risks and require additional input, but also provide funding and apportunities for staff across the
Trust to broaden and develop their experience as they engage in school improvement with colleagues. The
Trust contlhues to work collaboratively with key stakeholders and partners to support sponsor schools.

Fundraising
The academy trust does not use any external fundraisers.
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting
Energy consumption

Aggregate of energy consumption in the year

Emissions of CO2 equivalent

Scope 1 - direct emissions

- Gas combustion

- Fuel consumed for owned transport

Scope 2 - indirect emissions
- Electricity purchased
Scope 3 - other indirect emissions

- Fuel consumed for transport not owned by the Academy Trust

Total gross emissions

Infensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per pupil

Quantification and reporting methodology

2024 2023
kWh kWh

2,281,714 2,009,629

2024 2023
metri¢ tonnes metric tonnes

327.52 160.89
24.59 26.58
352.11 187.47
136.50 219.10
714 5.86
485.75 412.43
0.66 0.80

The Trust has fellowed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the
GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2022 and 2023 UK Government’s Conversion

Factors for Company Reporting.

Infensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2 equivalent per pupil, the

recommended ratio for the sector.
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Measures taken fo improve energy efficiency

» Narthern House Academy, Mabel Prichard (Primary), Springfield (Secondary), Iifley Academy (Post-16) and
Bardwell School have all completed the programme of replacing their old-style florescent lighting to LED
lamps or fittings. The vast majority of these schemes were completed in the October 2023 Half Term, with
some minor additional works completed at Bardwell in the summer term 2024, There has been a significant
reduction in electricity consumption across these schools. If Gallery Trust can identify funds to replace
Mabel Prichard (Secondary) lighting to LED, then this will further increase the electricity savings for the
Trust.

« Gallery Trust was successful in its final application to the DfE’s Condition Improvement Fund:
- The roof replacement project at Bardwell School will provide increased thermal efficiencies and
weatherproofing to the building, reducing our consumption.

« Schools continue to be encouraged to monitor running times of buudmg management systems so that
consumption is centrolled and not wasted out of hours.

Bloxham Grove Academy joined the Trust, opening in January 2024. This school has solar array, air-source
heat pumps and heat recovery systems installed, all regulated by the schools building management
system. '

« Itig encouraging to note that even with the addition of Bloxham Grove Academy (BGA) and their use of gas
and electric, it has not drastically added to the carbon footprint of the Trust.

» The wider Trust LED lighting replacement programme appears to have supported the reduced electricity
consumption.

= All schools continue to be encouraged to monitar running times of building management systems so that
consumption is controlled and not wasted out of hours.

Plans for future periods

The future plans of The Gallery Trust are to continue to expand in a measured and sustainable manner to ensure
that it can deliver its vision of improving outcomes for students with SEND in Oxfordshire.

The Trust is committed to welcoming additional schools which are converters or sponsored, and it will continue to
engage with schools which share its vision and values. The Trust will continue to work with Oxfordshire County
Caundll on the expansion of existing school provisien, as well as plan for the opening of Faringdon Free School in
the academic year 2026 - 2027 which will Increase the number of special school places in Oxfordshire. The Trust
has developed and started delivering in-reach and out-reach services, which it will continue to grow and develop in
the coming year.

The Trust's executive team will continue to promote school improvement and effective business practices across the
Trust and will deliver, in collaboration with school colleagues, the best educational outcomes for pupils, best value
for money and consistent approaches. The Trust is committed to building on the good practice in the sector to
ensure that there is best practice approaches across the schools, built on a mode! of aligned autonomy and a sense
of belonging and togetherness across the Gallery Trust community. The trust leadership is committed to working
flexibly in order to meet the individual needs of schools, and to securing compliance and outstanding outcomes in all
areas of work.

The Trust will continue to maintain its status as a leading voice in the SEND arena, werking with national
organisations and stakeholders in order to promote the development of SEND siralegy in Oxfordshire, and will take
advantage of networking opportunities in order to continue to build the excellent reputation of the Trust. The Trust
will continue to work with stakeholders to lobby for equitable funding for SEND pupils.

The Trust will support schools within the Trust to achieve their ohjoctives. The Trust is committed to work with
partners to develop teacher training opportunities Including initiat teacher training that are focused on supporting
teacher development within the specialist sector.

-25 .




THE GALLERY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Funds held as custodian trustee on bhehalf of others
The Trust holds no Assets and Funds as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others,

Auditor

in so far as the Trustess are aware:

~ there is no relevant audit infarmation of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and

- the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information,

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on J§).. 2+, 4. and signed on its behalf by:

& vener
Chair

Mr
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Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Gallery Trust has an effective and
appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed fo manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss,

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency
framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Offlcer, as accounting
officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the-funding agreement
between The Gallery Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The Chief Executive Officer is also respongible
for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 7 times during the year. Attendance
during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible

Mrs H Barter (Appointed 9 July 2024)

Mr R Frost {Resigned 10 September 2024)
Mr S King

Mrs D McMahon

Mrs A Milward

Mr C Scrivener (Chair)

Mr J Shryane (Resigned 9 July 2024)

Mrs M K Willett MBE (Accounting Officer)
Mr M Willis

NO NG NN 2
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Stralegic discussions at the Trust Board during the year have included the following:

The future development and growth of the Trust

The Gallery Trust Five Year Strategic Plan 2022 - 2027

Consideration of financial challenges linked to funding

Estates development and strategy

Development of in-reach and out-reach

Trustee recruitment

Goverhance arrangements, the role of committees, and the Scheme of Delegation
School improvement and attendance.

* » ® 2 e o w @

The DIE's Trust Quality Descriptors 2023 were used to quality assure and evaluate the work of the Trust,
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The Finance and Personnel committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. The purpose
of the committee is to ensure sound management of the Trust's finances, staff and resources, including
proper planning, monitoring and probity in line with DIE and ESFA guideiines, the Academy Trust
Handbook, and in accordance with Companies Act and Charity Commission requirements,

Key responsibilities of the Finance and Personnel Committee are:

« scrutiny of the Trust's financial position,

« consideration of approval of statutory submissions, including the Annual Accounts, budget forecasts, school
resource manager seli-assessment tool (SRMSAT)

+ oversee the budget setting process, monitor management accounts, cashflow and balance sheet, track

parformance against Key Performance Indicators

review and monitor funding levels for Special Schocls and consider implications on budget setting

consideration and approval of significant procurements and tenders

oversee financial and resource implications involved in the expansion of the Trust

recommendation / appoiniment of external auditor

review of People Strategy, HR issugs and performance indicators

strategic review of leadership staffing structures, recruitment and retention

consider the effectiveness and efficiency of business and finance systems

Attendance during the year was as follows:

Meetings attended Out of possible
Mr R Frost 7 8
Mr 8 King 8 8
Mr C Scrivener 7 8
Mrs M K Willett MBE 7 8
Mr M Willis 7 8
Mrs D McMahon 8 8

The Audit and Risk committee is a sub-committeze of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to
maintain an oversight of the Trust's financial, governance, risk management and intemal control
systems, report its findings termly and annually to the Trust Board and the Accounting Officer as a
critical element of the Board's annual reporting requirements.

Key issues for the Audit and Risk Committee
were:
+ appoint an internal auditor and receive reports
» consider the performance of external auditor
« further develop, monitor and review the risk register
+ agree the internal audit plan for the vear

Attendance during the year was as follows:

Meetings attended QOut of possible
Mr R Frost 3 3
Mr S King 3 3
Mrs M K Willett MBE 3 3
ivir M Willis 3 3
Mrs A Milward 2 3

Conflicts of interests

A register of the relevant business and pecuniary interests of Members, Trustees and senior employees Is
updated regularly and published on our school website. This register will also includs relevant material
interests arising from close family relationships with other members, trustees or employees, At each
meeting, Trustees are required to declare any new conflicts of interest,

The Trustee must absent themselves from the part of any meeting at which there is a discussion which
relates to any part of their daclaration. The Trustees must not vote on any such matter and is not to be
counted when calculating whether a guorum of Trustees is present at the meeting.
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Review of value for money

Ag Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers
good vaiue in the use of public resources, The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refars to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources recsived.

The Accounting Officer considers how the academy trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where available. The Accounting Officer for the academy trust
has delivered improved value for monay during the year by:

« continually. reviewing resources required by schools and identifying cost savings through centralisation of
support required.

« the effective annual Trust procurement of insurance using the wider CPC procurement framework to secure
best value for insurances which are not covered by the Department for Education's Risk Protection
Arrangement,

« working closely with the Local Authority in extending pupil places thus increasing pupil led income

« continuing to review subscriptions, licences and Trust support services that can reduce costs when
purchased cenirally. .

- ongoing implementation and raview of finance software for greater efficiencies across the Trust to meet
statutory compliance, reducing workload and software costs.

» achieving successful applications for the DfE Condition Improvement Fund supporting thermal efficiencies,
weather proofing and reducing energy consumption.

« recelving decarbonisation grants to replace remaining lighting with high efficiency LED fittings, indicating
electricity consumption will be reduced in the next academic year

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed fo manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policles, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectivenass. The system of internal conirol is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievernent of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The system of internal control has been in place in The Gallery Trust for the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August
2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the Key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to miligate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy
Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2023 tc 31 August 2024 and up to the
date of approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewad by the Board of Trustees.

The risk and control framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial centrol is based on a framework of regular management
information and adminisirative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability, In particular, it includes:

« comprehensive budgeting and menitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

- regular reviews by the Finance and Personnel Committee of reports which indicate financial performance

against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

sefting targets to measure financial and other parformance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

identification and management of risks.
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The Board of Trustees has considered the need for specific internal audit function and while Ross Brooke,
Chartered Accountants are engaged as the Trust internal auditor, specific specialists were also engaged for 2023/
24.

The Internal scrutiny pregramme gives advice on financial and other matters and performs a range of checks on
the academy trust's financial and other systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period
included:

scrutiny of payroll expenditure

procurement of utilities

check of pupil number returns: all schools

Schools’ Single Central Records: all schools

scrutiny of Safeguarding software records: all schools

Health and Safety processes during transitions of students at the beginning and end of the school day
Implemsntation of Keeping Children Safe in Education: all scheools

Health and Safety annual audits: all schools

Use of Health and Safety software; all schools

Cyber and digital security; alt schools

* & ® 8 o©o & & o & @

On a regular basis, the internal auditor reports to the Board of Trustees, through the Audit and Risk and Finance
and Personnel Committees on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of
Trustees' financial responsibilities and annually prepares an annual summary report to the committee outlining the
areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess
year on year progress, The Audit and Risk Committee provides a report annually to the DFE on the programme of
internal scrutiny,

Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

« the work of the internal auditor

+ the work of the external auditor

- the financial management and governance self-assessment process or the school resource management self-
assessment tool

» the work of the Senior Leaders within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Audit and Risk Committee and a plan to ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the Board of Trustees on l&ll.’.’&and signed on its behalf by:

Chevones” -

Mr C Scrivenar Mrs M K Willett MBE
Chair Accounting Officer

.30 -




THE GALLERY TRUST

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

As accounting officer of The Gallery Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Trust Board of
Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency {ESFA} of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy Trust, under the funding agreement in :
place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration 1 have had i
due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook. g

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust's Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use
of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees
and ESFA.

Mrs M K Willett MBE
Accounting Officer

...... il
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The trustees (who are also the directors of The Gallery Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparing the Trustees' report and the accounts in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 fo 2024
published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards {(United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations,

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare accounts for each financial year, Under company law, the Trustees
must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and
expenditure, for that period.

In preparing these accounts, the Trustess are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to
2024,

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

« prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charltable company and hence for taking reasonaple steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and othar controls, which conform with the requiremeants both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the cotporate and financial information included
on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of accounts may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on {&ng"' and sighed on its behalf by:

Mr C Scrivener
Chair

-39 -




A

THE GALLERY TRUST CRITCHLEYS

AUDIT LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE GALLERY TRUST
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Oplnion

We have audited the accounts of The Gallery Trust for the year ended 31 August 2024 which comprise the
statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and notes to the accounts, including
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and Unfted Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' {United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the accounts;

- give a true and fair view of the siate of the charitable company’s affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended,;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008; and

- have been prepared In accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2023 to 2024.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} {ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the accounts' section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the accounts in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our cther ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have pearformed, we have nof identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this repaort.

Other Information

The other Information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the accounts and our
auditor's report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.
Our opinion on the accounts does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any farm of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
accounts or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether
this gives rise to a material misstatement in the accounts themselveas. If, based on the work we have parformed, we
conglude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial year for
which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and

- tha Trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the khowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report, including the incorporated strategic
report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires

us to report to you:if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

- the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of Trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees are responsible for the
preparation of the accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of accounts that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the accounts, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy
Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the goihg concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either infend to liquidate the charitable company, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accounts as a whole are free from material
misstalement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of agsurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accardance with ISAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considerad material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably he expected lo influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these accounts,

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailsd below.

Qur approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including
fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

« the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence,
capabilities and skills to identify or recoghise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

- we identified the laws and regulations applicable to tha company through discussions with trustees and
other management, and from our commercial knowladge and experience of the client's business sector;

» we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the
financial statements or the operations of the company, including the Companies Act 2006, the Charities Act
2011, ESFA requirements, taxation legislation, data protection, anti-bribery, employment, environmental
and health and safety legislation;

« we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making
enquiries of management and inspecting legal correspondence; and

« Ideniifled laws and regulations were communicated with the audit team regularly and the team remained
alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit,

We assessed the susceptibility of the company's financial statements to material misstatement, including obtaining
an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

« making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their
knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and

+» considering the internal contrals in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations.
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To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

+ performed analytical procedures fo identify any unusual or unexpected relaticnships:

« tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;

« assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining whether accounting estimates were
indicative of potential bias; and

+ Investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions,

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures
which included, but were not limited to;

« agreeing financial statement disclosures fo underlying supporting documentation;

o reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

«+ enquiring of management as to aclual and potential litigation and claims; and

+ reviewing correspondence with HMRC, the ESFA and the company's legal advisors.

There are Inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above., The more removed that laws and
regulations are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would bacome aware of non-compliance.
Auditing standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations to
enquiry of the directorsf/frustees and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence,
if any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they may
involve deliberate concealment or collusion,

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: https:/
www.irc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's repart,

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit wark has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's
tmembers those matters we are required fo state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable
company and the charitable company's members as a bedy, for our audit wark, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Katherine Wilkes (Senjor Statutory Auditor) 13/12/24
for and on behalf of Critchleys AuditLLP e

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor First Floor, Park Central
40-41 Park End Street
Oxford
OX11JD
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In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 20 August 2021 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
raceived by The Gallery Trust during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied to the
purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to The Gallery Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter.
Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Gallery Trust and ESFA those matters we are required
to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than The Gallery Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion
we have formed.

Respective responsibllitles of The Gallery Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Gallery Trust's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 30 May 2019 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September
2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance,
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of
the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in
carrying out our work which suggests that in all malerial respects, expenditure disbursed and income received
during the period 1 September 2023 1o 31 August 2024 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament
or that the financial fransactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accerdance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditers and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is {o perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
reguiarity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would hecome aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undettaken to draw to our conclusion includes;

+ Reviewing the minutes of meetings of the Board of Trustees and cbtaining representations concerning access
to information, disclosure and provision of information;

« Evaluation of the general control environment of the academy trust, extending the procedures required for
financial statements to include regularity;

« Assessment and testing of a sample of the specific control activities over regularity of a particular activity;

« Carrying out substaniive testing te cover autharisation of expenditure within internal delegated authorities and
externally imposed limits;

« Consideration of whether activities carried out ars within the charitable objects.
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Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Critehtengs ot LLF

Reporting Accountant
Critchleys Audit LLP
First Floor, Park Central
40-41 Park End Street
Oxford

0X11JD
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants
Charitable activities:

- Funding for educational operations

Other trading activities
Investmenis

Total
Expenditure on:
Charitable adlivities:;

- Educational operations

Total

Net income/{expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains/{losses)
Actuarial gains on defined benefit
pension schemes

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total Total

funds General Fixed asset 2024 2023

Notes £ £ £ £ £

3 90,959 - 18,084,983 18,175,942 617,108

4 97,706 21,409,160 - 21,506,866 16,747,938

5 226,998 - - 226,998 322,223

6 22,273 - - 22,273 287

437,936 21,409,160 18,084,983 39,932,078 17,687,557

9 437,936 20,487,775 2,515,854 23,442,565 21,460,674
7 437,936 20,487,775 2,516,854 23,442,565 21,460,674
- 921,385 15,568,129 16,489,514 (3,773,117)

18 - 59,590 (59,590) - -
20 - 828,000 - 828,000 2,479,000
- 1,808,975 15,608,639 17,317,514 (1,294,117)

715,662 {1,473,000) 55,192,455 54,435,117 55,729,234

715,662 335,975 70,700,994 71,752,631 54,435 117
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cOmparative year information Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total

Year ended 31 August 2023 funds General Fixed asset 2023
Notes £ E £ £

income and endowments from:

Donations and capital grants 3 2,169 2,437 612,503 617,109

Charitable activities:

- Funding for educational operations 4 88,092 16,659,846 - 16,747,938

Other trading activities 5 322,223 - - 322,223

Investments 6 287 - - 287

Total 412,771 16,662,283 612,503 17,687,557

Expenditure on:

Charitable activities:

- Educational operations 9 412,485 18,588,106 2,460,083 21,460,674

Total 7 412,485 18,588,106 2,460,083 21,460,674

Net income/{expenditure) 286 (1,925,823) (1,847,580) (3,773,117)

Transfers between funds 18 (78,144) {611,509} 689,653 -

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes 20 - 2,479,000 - 2,479,000

Net movement in funds (77,858) (58,332) (1,157,927) (1,294,117)

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 793,520 (1,414,668) 56,350,382 55,729,234

Total funds carriaed forward 715,662 (1,473,000) 55,192,455 54,435,117
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2024

Fixed assets
Tangible assels

Current assets

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Creditars: amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilitles

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Net assets excluding pension liability
befined benefit pension scheme liability
Total net assets

Funds of the Academy Trust:
Restricted funds

- Fixed asset funds

- Restricted incoms funds

- Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

The accounts on pages 38 to 65 were approved by the Trustees and authorised for issue on I@JJ«M and

are signed on their behalf by:

Mr C Scrivenef®
Chair

Naotes

13

14

15

16

20

18

18

2024
£ £

70,083,345

1,773,138

2,918,025

4,692,163

(1,745,845)

2,946,318

73,029,663

(658,032)
72,371,631
(619,000)

71,752,631

70,700,994
954,975

(619,000)
71,036,969
715,662

71,752,631

Company registration number 08334718 (England and Wales)

2023
£ £

54,616,697

1,100,946

2,475,823

3,576,769

(1,572,301)

2,004,468

56,621,165

(713,048)
55,908,117
(1,473,000)

54,435,117

56,192,456
(1 ,473,00(;)
53,719,455

715,662

54,435,117 .
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2024 2023

Notes £ £ £ £
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash uged in operating activities 21 (92,053) (878,348)
Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 22,273 287
Capiltal grants from DfE Group 1,177,523 1,158,453 ;
Capital funding received from spensors and others 20,000 172,118 i
Purchase of fangible fixed assets {679,328) (1,636,365) |
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 540,468 {305,509)
Cash flows from financing activities
Loans received/{paid) (5,213) 653,994
Net cash {used in)/provided by financing activities (5,213) 653,994
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents in the reporting period 443,202 (629,863)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,475,823 3,005,686
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 2,919,025 2,475,823
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THE GALLERY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1

1.1

1.2

1.3

Accounting policies

The Gallery Trust is a charitable company. The address of its princlpal place of business is given on page 1
and the nature of its operations are set out in the Trustees' report.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgaments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The accounts of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared
under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended
Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102} (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts
Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, ie whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least
one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the accounts and have concluded that the Academy Trust
has adequate rescurces to continue in operational existence for the foresesable future and there are no
material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going cencern. Thus they continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the accounts,

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably,

Grants

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entittement fo the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement ocours before income is
received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitliement to the grant. Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are
recognised when there is entitltement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended,

Sponsorship income

Sponsoership income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts lo a donation is recognised in the
statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related
conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis {(where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.
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1

1.4

1.5

Accounting policies {Continued)

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facililies, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
Academy Trust has provided the goods or services,

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected procesds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair valus at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from
other trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading
activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities'. Where it is impractical to
fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the accounts until they are
sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities.

Donated fixed assets

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which case
the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a
corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the Academy Trust's accounting policies.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive abligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount of
the obligation can be measured refiably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and
support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis
consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and
depreciation chargss are allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Expenditure on raising funds .

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are cosls incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Assets costing £2,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached (o the funding that require the continued
use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the staiement of financial
activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreclation on the relevant assets is charged directly to
the resiricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.
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1

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

Accounting policies {Continued)

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asseton a
straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Leasehold buildings 5% (20 years from conversion {125 years for land))
Computer equipment 33% (3 years)
Fixtures, fittings & equipment 20% (5 years)
Motor vehicles 20% (5 years)

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of financial activitias.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement
can be estimated reliably. Liabilltles are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will
pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must
provide.

Leased assefs
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Financial instruments
The Acadamy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis are as follows,

Financial assets
Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost.
Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost,
Taxation and soclal security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Defetred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash setflement has already taken place and
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than ¢ash or another financial instrument,

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 8 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1982, fo the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
purposes,

Pensions benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes and the
assets ara held separately from those of the Academy Trust.
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1

1.11

1.12

Accounting policies (Continued)

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method, The TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign betwsen employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions are recognised in the
period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy
Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent
to the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities.
The actuarial valuations are obfained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The
amounts charged to net income or expenditure are the current service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as
incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial
activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate
used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assels
and the actual return on the schems assefs is recognised in other recognised gains and lossas. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees,

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose,

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/
donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education.

Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments received from
ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of financial activities as the
academy trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The academy trust can use
up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of
financial activities. The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 26.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances,

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and |iabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
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2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement (Continued)

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost ar income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 20, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2024. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability.

3 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted 7 Total Total

funds funds 2024 2023

£ £ £ £

Assets fransferred to the trust - 17,304,174 17,304,174 -
Capital grants - 780,809 780,809 583,630
Cther donations 90,959 - 90,959 33,479
90,95¢ 18,084,983 18,175,942 617,109

4 Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
DfE f ESFA grants

General annual grant (GAG) - 7,346,667 7,346,667 6,910,000

Other DfE / ESFA grants:
UIFSM - 13,221 13,221 7,994
Pupil premium - 376,850 376,850 342,080
Others (see note below) - 294,340 284,340 824,902

- 8,031,078 8,031,078 8,084,976

Other government grants
Local autherity grants - 13,100,925 13,100,925 8,304,797

COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)

Recovery premium and cther funding - 266,452 266,452 259,130
Other incoming resources 97,706 10,705 108,411 99,035
Total funding 97,706 21,409,160 21,506,866 16,747,938
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4 Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations (Continued)

Other incoming rescurces include catering income of £84,748 (2023: £72,998) and trip income of £12,958
(2023: £15,096).

Other ESFA grants include PE and Sports Grant £78,400 (2023; £84,620), National Tutoring Programme
£31,762 (2023: £117,279), Early Careers Framework £Nil {2023: £7,371), Start Up Grant £70,000 {2023:
£80,000), Post Opening Grant £110,000 {2023: £Nil) and Supplementary Grant £Nil (2023: £76,161).

Local authority grants include SEN funding £11,425,295 (2023: £7,509,267) and Teachers' Pay and Pension
Grant £1,016,708 (2023: £455,669).

5 Other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
Hire of facilities 75,469 - 75,469 56,370
Pupil transport income 106,777 - 106,777 106,054
Other income 44,752 - 44,752 159,799
226,998 - 226,998 322,223
6 Investment income
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
Short term deposits 22,273 - 22,273 287
7 Expenditure
Non-pay expenditure Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £
Academy's educational operations ‘
- Direct costs 14,695,899 - 934,182 15,630,081 12,893,241
- Allocated support costs 2,443,203 3,810,834 1,458,447 7.812,484 8,467,433

17,139,102 3,910,834 2,392,626 23442,565 21,460,674
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7 Expenditure (Continued)
Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes: 2024 2023
£ £
Operating fease rentals 21,816 59,278
Dapreciation of tangible fixed assets 2,516,854 2,460,083
Fees payable lo auditor for:
- Audit 21,000 19,450
- Other services 13,210 9,190

Net interest on defined benefit pension liability 74,000 151,000

8 Central services

The Academy Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

payroll

human resources

health and safety

facilities management
ICT support

finance and audit services
risk management

schocl improvement

data protection

The Academy Trust charges for these services on the following basis:

An agreed amount per pupil from the General Annual Grant (GAG) income and the High Needs funding from
Oxfordshire County Coungil.

The amounts charged during the year were as follows: 2024 2023
£ £

Iffley Academy 331,500 180,720
Bardwell School 209,950 110,366
Northern House Academy 158,383 140,257
QOrion Academy 201,356 165,195
Springfield School 213,632 117,073
Mabel Prichard School 217,317 179,358
Bloxham Grove Academy , 70,128 -
1,402,266 892,969
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9 Charitable activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
Direct costs
Educational operations 437,936 15,192,145 15,630,081 12,993,241
Support costs
Educational operations - 7,812,484 7,812,484 8,467,433

437,936 23,004,629 23,442,565 21,460,674

Total Total
2024 2023
£ £

Direct costs
Teaching and educational support staff costs 14,695,890 12,289,567
Technology costs 50,359 31,241
Educational supplies and services 151,782 55,492
Examination fees 20,127 20,276
Educational consultancy 128,239 140,100
Other direct costs 583,675 456,565

15,630,081 12,993,241

Analysis of support costs

Support staff costs 2,610,166 3,649,795
Depreciation and loss on dispasal 2,516,854 2,460,083
Technology costs 208,260 199,194
Premises costs 1,393,980 1,094,793
Legal costs 70,403 58,467
Other support cosls 838,046 1,020,747
Governance costs 76,775 84,354

7,812,484 8,467,433
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10  Staff

Staff costs and employee benefits
Staff costs during the year were:

2024 2023

£ £

Wages and salaries 12,722,983 11,551,570
Social security costs 1,270,710 1,096,707
Pension costs 2,524,687 2,662 076
Staff costs - employees 16,518,360 15,310,353
Agency stalf costs 582,898 383,284
Staff restructuring costs 37,844 24,051

17,139,102 15,717,688
Staff development and other staff costs 166,963 121,674

Total staff expenditure 17,306,065 15,839,362

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments 22,942 -
Severance payments 14,902 24,051
37,844 24,051

Social security costs include apprenticeship levy of £48,804 (2023: £41,910).

Severance payments
The Academy Trust paid 1 severance payment in the year, disclosed in the following band:

£0-£25,000 1

Staff numbers
The average humbar of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

2024 2023

Number Number

Teachers 108 103
Administration and support 335 309
Management 15 16
458 428
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10  Staff (Continued)
The number of persons employed, expressed as a full time equivalent, was as follows:

2024 2023

Number Number

Teachers 89 95

Administration and support 188 202

Management 53 16

340 313

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer

national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

2024 2023

Number Number

£60,001 - £70,000
£70,001 - £80,000
£80,001 - £90,000
£90,001 - £100,000
£110,001 - £120,000
£120,001 - £130,000
£170,001 - £180,000
£190,001 - £200,000

Key management personnel
The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees, the Senio

1

1
7
6
1
1
1

” T e = B

1

I Executive Team as

listed on page 1 and headteachers. The tofal amount of key management personnel employee benefits

(including employer pension contributions and employer natienal insurance contributio
management personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £1,720,807 (2023: £1

11 Trustees' remuneration and expenses

ns) received by key
,886,398),

One or more of the Trusiees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy Trust. The Chief Executive Officer and other staff Trustees only recelve remuneration in
respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of Chief Executive Officer and staff members under

their coniracts of employment, and not in respect of their services as Trustees.

The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

M K Willett MBE (Chief Executive Officer, and trustee):

+ Remuneration; £160,001 - £170,000 (2023; £150,001 - £160,000)

» Employer's pension contributions *: £25,001- £30,000 (2023: £25,001 - £30,000)
Other related party transactions involving the Trustees are sef out within the related partie

“this relates to employer pension contributions paid in lieu,

s nofe,
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12

13

14

Trustees’ and officers’ insurance

The Academy Trust has opted inte the Department for Education’s Risk Protection Arrangemént (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise, This scheme protects Trustees
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Academy Trust
business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible fo quantify the Trustees and officers
indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme,

Tangible fixed assets

LeaseholdAssets under Computer  Fixtures, Motor Total
buildings construction equlpment fittings & vehicles
equipment
£ £ £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 September 2023 64,673,013 - 256,146 291,286 74,717 65,295,162
Additions 17,723,221 - 201,213 39,318 19,750 17,983,502
Disposals - - (44,415)  (144,763) - {189,178)
At 31 August 2024 82,396,234 - 412,944 185,841 94,467 83,089,486
Depreciation
At 1 September 2023 10,168,023 - 224,087 215,462 70,893 10,678,465
On disposals - - {44,415)  (144,763) - (189,178)
Charge for the year 2,386,150 - 90,296 33,759 6,642 2,516,854
At 31 August 2024 12,554,173 - 269,968 104,458 77,642 13,006,141
Net book value
At 31 August 2024 69,842,061 - 142,976 81,383 16,925 70,083,345
- 32,059 75,824 3,624 54,616,697

At 31 August 2023 54,504,990

Additions io leasehold land and buildings include a donation from the Department of Education of the
leasehold of Bloxham Grove School at its construction cost of £17,304,174.

Total leasshold land is valued at £9,484,906 at year end (2023: £9,488,604) and includes the land for all
schools except Iffley Academy.

Debtors
2024 2023
£ £
Trade debtors 327,301 81,540
VAT recoverable 136,488 138,678
Prepayments and accrued income 1,309,349 880,728

1,773,138 1,100,946
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15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Other loans

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Cther creditors

Accruals and deferred income

16  Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Other loans

Analysis of loans

Wholly repayable within five years
Less: included in current fiahilities

Amounts included above

Loan maturity

Debt due in one year or less

Due in mare than one year but not more than two ysars
Due in more than two years but not more than five years
Due in more than five years

2024 2023
£ £
60,428 10,625
304,950 265,585
292,847 246,466
323,740 253,040
763,880 796,585
1,745,845 1,572,301
2024 2023
£ £
658,032 713,048
2024 2023
£ £
718,460 723,673
(60,428) (10,625)
658,032 713,048
60,428 10,625
60,428 10,625
165,733 21,539
431,871 680,884

718,460

723,673

A loan of £12,593 from Prudential was transferred to the trust on Bardwell School's conversion from
Oxfordshire County Counci| on 1 June 2019, The loan was repayable in seven annual instalments of £1,799

and £5,397 remained outstanding at 31August 2024 (2023: £7,196 outstanding).

The Trusl has five loans from the Condition Improvement Fund, at 31 August 2024 the ameunt outstanding
was £707,939 (2023: £707,939). Repayments commence 1 September 2024 and repayments will be made

over the next 10 years,
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17

18

Deferred income

Deferred income s includad within;

Creditors due withih one year

Deferred income at 1 September 2023

Released from previous years

Resources deferred in the year

Deferred income at 31 August 2024

Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
UIFSM

Pupil premium

Other DfE / ESFA grants
Other government grants
Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
DTE group capital grants

Fixed assets fund

Capital donations and donated
assels

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

2024 2023
£ £
329,742 289,673
289,673 174,349
(289,673) (174,349)
329,742 289,673
329,742 289,673
Deferred income at year end relates to funding received in advance of £329,742 (2023; £289,673).
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2023 ihcome Expenditure transfers 2024
£ £ £ £ £
- 7,346,667 {6,630,760) 59,590 775,497
- 13,221 (13,221) - -
- 376,850 {376,850) - -
- 294,340 {294,340) - -
- 13,367,377 (13,187,899) - 179,478
- 10,705 (10,705) ; -
(1,473,000) - 26,000 828,000 (619,000)
(1,473,000) 21,409,160  {20,487,775) 887,590 335,975
575,758 780,809 - (738,918) 617,649
54,616,697 - (2516,854) 17,983,502 70,083,345
- 17,304,174 - (17,304,174) -
55,192,455 18,084,983 (2,516,854} (59,590) 70,700,994
53,719,455 39,494,143  (23,004,629) 828,000 71,036,969
715,662 437,936 (437,936) - 715,662
54,435,117 39,932,079  (23,442,565) 828,000 71,752,631

Total funds
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18

Funds (Continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

The General Annual Grant represents funding received from the Education and Skills Funding Agency during
the period in order to fund the continuing activities of the school. Under the funding agreement with the
Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to limits on the amount of GAG that it could carry
forward at 31 August 2022,

Pupil Premium Funding represents funding received from the Department for Education (DfE) to raise the
attainment of disadvantaged pupils of all abilities. The eligibility of the pupils and rates of grant per pupil are
set-out by the DfE, This funding is to be used for the provision of education,

Othar DIE/ESFA drants represents other forms of funding received from the Department for Education. This
includes but is not limited to Year 7 Catech Up funding and PE grants.

Other government grants included Top-up and Other Local Authority Revenue funding represents various
grant funding provided by Local Authorities.

Other restriced funds, Other grants represent amounts given to the Academy Trust for specific revenue
purposes.

The pension reserve fund separately identifies the pension deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme,
and through which all the movements on the pension scheme are recognised,

DfE group capital grants includes Devolved Formula Capital represents funding provided by the Department
for Education fo be used for capital projects. This funding may be used for specific capital projects which are
not considered fo be fixed asset additions.

Capital donations includes various grant funding provided by Local Authorities.

The Fixed Asset fund recognises the net book value of tangible and fixed assets transferred to the trust on
conversion and additions since conversion,

Unrestricted funds represent other Incoms to the Academy Trust which is not recelved as funding or with a
specific purpose.
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18

Funds

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as foljows:

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
UIFSM

Pupil premium

Recovery premium (see note 4)
Other DfE / ESFA grants

Other governmsnt grants

Other restricted funds

Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE group capital grants
Capital expenditure from GAG

Capital donations and donated
assefs

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

55,729,234

(Continued)

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September l[osses and 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure transfers 2023

£ £ £ E £
1,889,332 6,910,000 (8,187,823) {611,509) -
- 7,994 (7,994) - -

- 342,080 (342,080) - -

- 259,130 (259,130) - -

- 824,902 (824,902) - -

- 8,304,797 (8,304,797) - -

5,000 13,380 {18,380) - -
{3,309,000) - {643,000) 2,479,000 (1,473,000)
{(1,414,668) 16,662,283 (18,588,106) 1,867,481 (1,473,000}
909,967 583,630 - (917,839) 575,758
55,440,415 - (2,460,083} 1,636,365 54,616,607
- 28,873 - (28,873) -
56,350,382 612,503 {(2.460,083) 689,653 55,192,455
54,935,714 17,274,786  (21,048,189) 2,557,144 53,719,455
793,520 412,771 {412,485) (78,144) 715,662
17,687,657  (21,460,674) 2,478,000 54,435,117
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18  Funds (Continued)

Total funds analysis by academy

2024 2623

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 were allocated as follows: £ £
Iffley Academy - -
Bardwell Schoal - -
Northern House Academy - -
Orion Academy - -
Springfield School - -
Mabel Prichard School - -
Bloxham Grove Academy - -
Central services 1,670,637 715,662
Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve 1,670,637 715,662
Restricted fixed asset fund 70,700,994 55,192,455
Pension reserve {(619,000)  (1,473,000)
Total funds 71,752,631 54,435,117
Tofal cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and Other costs
educational Other support Educational excluding Total Total
support staff staff costs supplies depreciation 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £

Iffley Academy 2,536,843 408,558 285,535 551,815 3,783,752 3,686,045
Bardwell School 2,199,629 506,153 118,534 458,512 3,282,828 2,917,224
Northern House Academy 1,897,075 443,387 229,749 468,578 3,038,789 2,179,214
Orlon Academy 2,220,947 367,879 64,851 277,019 2,830,696 2,710,982
Springfield School 2,327,454 264,682 43,893 202,921 2,028,960 2,661,619
Mabel Prichard School 1,667,765 281,390 111,448 260,448 2,321,051 2,589,510
Bloxham Grave Academy 695,922 96,258 72,273 123,293 087,747 -
Central services 1,127,886 196,267 5,230 322,505 1,651,888 2,255,087

14,673,621 2,565,686 931,513 2,755,001 20,925,711 19,000,591

Depreciation and loss on
disposal 2,516,854 2,460,083

Total costs per note 9 ‘ 23,442,565 21,460,674

Other support staff costs, Cantral services, includes a credit of £28,000 (2023: charge of £643,000) in respect
of FRS 102 pension and finance costs.
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Analysis of net assets between funds

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2024 are
represented by:
Tangible fixed assets - - 70,083,345 70,083,345
Current assets 765,464 3,309,050 617,649 4,692,163
Creditors falling due within che year (49,802  (1,696,043) - (1,745,845)
Creditors falling due after one year - (658,032) - {658,032)
Defined benefit pension liability - (619,000) - {619,000)
Total net assets 715,662 335,975 70,700,994 71,762,631
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are
represented by:
Tangible fixed assets - - 54,616,697 54,616,697
Current assets 715,662 2,285,349 575,758 3,578,769
Creditors falling due within one year - {1,572,301) - (1,572,301)
Creditors falling due after one year - (713,048) - (713,048)
Defined benefit pension liability - (1,473,000) - {1,473,000)
Total net assets

Pension and similar obligations

715,662

(1,473,000)

55,192,455

54,435,117

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pensicn schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS} for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(L.GPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Oxfordshire County Council. Both are multi-employer
defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020, and that of the LLGPS
related to the period ended 31 March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £321,403 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2024 (2023: £248,458) and
are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction
The Teachers' Penslon Scheme (TPS) Is a statutory, contributory, defined benafit scheme, governed by the

Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academy trusts. All
teachers have the option to opt out of the TPS following enrciment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employsr makes confributions, as a
percentage of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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Pension and similar obligations {Continued)

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principlas, conducts a formal actuarial raview of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The &im of the review is fo ensure scheme costs are recognised and managed
appropriately and the review spacifies the level of future contributions.

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the use of future costs, design of benefits
and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried ocut as at 31 March 2020, The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 Ocfober 2023, with the SCAPE rate,
set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPI. The key elements of
the valuafion outcome are:

1. Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy). This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost centrol result is such that no
change in member benefits is needed.

1. Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service fo the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets {(estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £39,800 million.

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024, The next valuation result is due to be
implemented from 1 April 2028,

The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £1,269,614 (2023: £1,091,325).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions wehsite,

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan. Accordingly,
the Academy Trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has has accounted for its
contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined confribution scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above
the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is & funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total confributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future years are 22.6% for
employers and 5.3% for employees,

Parliament has agreed, al the request of the Secretary of State for Educalion, to a guarantee that, in the event
of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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Tetal contributions made
Employer's contributicns
Employees' contributions

Total contributions

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase for pensions in paymentfinflation
Discouni rate for scheme liabilities

Inflation assumption (CPI)

Commutation of pensions to lump sums

{Continued)
2024 2023
£ £

1,283,000 1,054,000
396,000 349,000

1,678,000 1,403,000

2024 2023
% %
2.65 2.85
2.65 295
5.00 5.20
270 10.10

50.00 50.00

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient aliowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today

- Males

- Females

Retiring in 20 years
- Males

- Females

Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:

Discount rate + 0.1%
Discouni rate - 0.1%

Mortality assumption + 1 year
Mortality assumption - 1 year
CPlrate + 0.1%

CPl rate -0.1%

2024 2023
Years Years
21.0 21.0
24.0 24.0
221 22.2
256 25.6
2024 2023
£'000 £'000
441 379
441 379
674 584
674 584
434 354
434 354
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Defined benefit pension scheme net liability
Scheme assefs
Scheme obligations

Net liability

The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme

Equities
Corporate bonds
Propetty

Other assets

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £1,573,000 (2023: £(952,000)).
Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost

Interest cost

Total operating charge

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

At 1 September 2023
Current service cost
Interest cost

Employee contributions
Actuarial loss/(gain)
Benefits paid

At 31 August 2024

(Continued)

2024 2023

£ £
16,225,000 13,125,000
(16,844,000} (14,598,000)
(619,000) (1,473,000}
2024 2023

Fair value Fair value
£ £
11,682,500 9,449,000
2,920,500 2,100,000
1,460,000 1,313,000
162,000 263,000
16,225,000 13,125,000
2024 2023

£ £
(100,000) 492,000
74,000 151,000
{26,000) 643,000
2024 2023

£ £
14,598,000 16,086,000
1,183,000 1,546,000
796,000 721,000
396,000 349,000
23,000 {4,001,000)
{152,000) (103,000)

16,844,000

14,588,000
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21

22

Pension and similar obligations (Continued)
Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets
2024 2023
£ £
At 1 September 2023 13,125,000 12,777,000
Interest income 722,000 570,000
Actuarial (gain)/loss 851,000 (1,522,000)
Employer contributions 1,283,000 1,054,000
Employee contributions 396,000 349,000
Benefits paid (152,000} {103,000)
At 31 August 2024 16,225,000 13,125,000
Reconciliation of net income/{expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities
2024 2023
£ £
Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting periced (as per the statement of
financial activities) 16,489,514 {3,773,117)
Adjusted for:
Capital grants from DIE and cther capital income (18,084,983) (612,503)
Investment income receivable (22,273) (287)
Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable {100,000) 492,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 74,000 151,000
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 2,516,854 2,460,083
{Increase) in debtars {1,088,908) {59,981)
Increase in creditors 123,741 464,457
Net cash used in operating activities (92,053) (678,348)
Analysis of changes in net funds
1 September  Cash flows 31 August
2023 2024
£ £ £
Cash 2,475,823 443,202 2,919,025
Loans falling due within one year {(10,625) (49,803) {60,428}
Loans falling due after more than one year (713,048) 85,016 (658,032}
1,752,150 448,415 2,200,565
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Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
Trustees have an interest. The following related party transactions teok place in the financial period.

Expenditure related party transactions

Miss K Hunston

Miss K Hunston (daughter of Mrs S MHunston, Director of Growth and Strategy} was employed by Iffley

Academy as & Teaching Assistant in the year ended 31 August 2024, Miss K Hunston's remuneration during
the year ending 31 August 2024 was £19,194 (2023; £17,869), employer pension contributions amounted to
£3,724 (2023: £3,285) and expenses were £Nil (2023: £Nil). The balance due to Miss K Hunston at at 31
August 2024 was £Nil {2023: £Nil).

Miss K Hunston's appointment was made in open competition and Mrs S Hunston was not involved in the
decision-making process regarding appointment. Miss K Hunston is paid within the normal pay scale for her
role and receives no special treatment as a result of her relationship to the Director of Growth and Strategy.

Mr M Shaw

Mr M Shaw (son of Mrs K Shaw, Member} was empleyed by Iffley School as a Resources Assistant in the
year ended 31 August 2024, Mr M Shaw's remuneration during the year ending 31 August 2024 was £7,916
(2023: £7,054), employer pension contributions amounted to £1,536 (2023; £1,297) and expenses were £Nil
{2023: £Nil}. The baiance due to Mr M Shaw at at 31 August 2024 was £Nil (2023: £Nil}.

Mr M Shaw's appointment was made in open competiticn and Mrs K Shaw was not involved in the decision-
making process regarding appointment. Mr M Shaw is paid within the normal pay scale for his role and
receives no special treatment as a result of his relationship to a Member.

Mrs C Shyrane

Mrs C Shyrane (wife of Mr J Shyrane, Trustee until 9 July 2024) was employed by Springfield Schoo! as a
Teaching Assistant in the year ended 31 August 2024. Mrs C Shyrans's remuneration during the year ending
31 August 2024 was £6,924 (2023 £4,686), employsr pansion contributions amounted to £1,343 (2023: £384)
and sxpsnses were £Nil (2023: £Nil). The balance due to Mrs C Shyrane at at 31 August 2024 was ENII
{2023; £Nil).

Mrs C Shyrane's appointmeni was made in open competlition and Mr J Shyrane was not involved in the
decision-making process regarding appointment. Mrs C Shyrane is paid within the normal pay scale for her
role and recelves no special treatment as a result of her relationship to a trustes.

Mr S Wawryzniak

Mr 8 Wawryzniak {(husband of Mrs L Wawryzniak, Headieacher at Mabel Prichard) was employed by Orion
School as a Teacher in the year ended 31 August 2024, Mr S Wawryzniak’s remuneration during the year
ending 31 August 2024 was £56,081 (2023: £51,094), employer pension contributions amounted to £14,460
{2023: £12,099) and expenses were £Nil (2023: £NIl). The balance due to Mr S Wawryzniak at at 31 August
2024 was £NIil {2023: £Nil).

Mr S Wawryzniak's appeintment was made in open competition and Mrs L Wawryzniak was not involved in
the decision-making process regarding appointment. Mr 8 Wawryzniak is paid within the normal pay scale for
his role and receives no special treatment as a result of his relationship to a member of Key Management.
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26

Related party transactions {Continued)

Ms A McMahon

Ms A McMahon (daughter of Mrs D McMahon, Trustee) was employed by Mabel Prichard School as a
Teaching Assistant in the year ended 31 August 2024. Ms A McMahon's remuneration during the year ending
31 August 2024 was £1,030 (2023: £15,714), and employer pension contributions amounted to £200 (2023:
£2,894),

Ms A McMahon's appointment was made in open compelilion and Mrs D McMahon was not involved in the
decision-making process regarding appointment. Ms A McMahon is paid within the normal pay scale for her
role and receives no special treatment as a result of her relationship to a Trustee.

Mr D Holmes

Mr D Holmes (spouse of Mrs R Holmes, Head of School at Northern House Academy) was employed by Orion
Academy as a teacher in the year ended 31 August 2024. Mr D Holmes' remuneration during the year ending
31 August 2024 was £64,082 (2023: £Nil), and employer pension contributions amounted to £18,829 (2023:
ENIN.

Mr D Holmes' appointment was made in open competition and Mrs R Holmes was not involved in the
decision-making process regarding appointment. Mr D Holmes is paid within the normal pay scale for his role
and receives no special treatment as a result of his relationship to a Head of School.

Mr R Willett

Mr R Willett (spouse of Mrs K Willett, Trustee and Accounting Officer) was employed by the Trust as a Student
Wellbelng and Therapeutic Suppott Manager in the year ended 31 August 2023. Mr R Willett's remuneration
during the year ending 31 August 2023 was £7,439, employer pension contributions amounted to £1,317 and
expenses were £Nil. The balance due to Mr R Willett at 31 August 2023 was £Nil.

Mr R Willett's appointment was made in open competition and Mrs K Willett was not involved In the decision-
making process regarding appointment. Mr R Willett is paid within the normal pay scale for his role and
receives no special freatment as a result of his relationship to a Trustee.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of
ft being wound up while he or she is a member, or within cne year after he or she ceases to he a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she
ceases to be a member,

Agency arrangements

The academy frust distributes 16-19 Bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the accounting
period ending 31 August 2024, the trust received £3,778 (2023: £3,801) and disbursed £3,778 (2023: £3,801)
from the fund. An amount of £Nil {2023: £Nil} is included in Other Creditors relating to the undistributed funds
that are repayable to the ESFA.
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